
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

                               LACEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
AUGUST 8, 2013 

 7:00 P.M.  
420 COLLEGE STREET, LACEY CITY HALL 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 
  
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  & CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS*  

 
A. Council Minutes of July 25, 2013 
B. Final Plat of Campus Ridge Project #11-195 

  
 

 
 

 
 
3. PUBLIC RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A. Recognition of Tanya Fehlig as Youth Representative on Library Board  
B. Recognition of Woodland District Steering Committee (Ryan Andrews) 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA*  

  
 
 

  
 

 
  5. PUBLIC HEARING:         

 
6. PROCLAMATION:   

 
A. Proclamation declaring August 8, 2013, as Senior Services for South Sound Day  
 (Eileen McKenzie Sullivan) 
 

7. REFERRAL FROM PLANNING COMMISSION:  
 

8. REFERRAL FROM HEARINGS EXAMINER:  
 
A. Conditional Use Permit #13-03: Verizon Wireless South Sound Center Monopole 
 (Samra Seymour) 

 
9. RESOLUTIONS: 

 
10. ORDINANCES: 

CITY COUNCIL 

VIRGIL CLARKSON 

Mayor 
 

JASON HEARN 

Deputy Mayor 
 

JEFF GADMAN 

LENNY GREENSTEIN 

RON LAWSON 

CYNTHIA PRATT 

ANDY RYDER 
 

CITY MANAGER 
SCOTT SPENCE  

* Items listed under the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
.  

*The City Council will allow comments under this section on items NOT already on the agenda. Where  
appropriate, the public will be allowed to comment on agenda items as they are addressed during the 
meeting.  

.  



 
11. MAYOR'S REPORT:  

 
A. Appoint Yasemin Alptekin to a 1st term on the Historical Commission 

 
12. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 
 

A. Award bid for 20th Avenue Waterline Replacement Project (Scott Egger) 
 

13. STANDING GENERAL COMMITTEE:  
 

A. General Government & Public Safety Committee (07.19.13) 
 

14. OTHER BUSINESS:    
 
15. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS:          
 

A. Mayor Virgil Clarkson: 
1. Intercity Transit Authority (IT) 
2. Mayors’ Forum 
3. Thurston Regional Planning Council (TRPC) 

 
B. Deputy Mayor Jason Hearn: 

1. Joint Animal Services Commission (JASCOM) 
2. HTPA-Human Trafficking 
 

C. Councilmember Cynthia Pratt: 
1. Energy Advisory Committee 
2. LOTT 
3. Olympic Region Clean Air Agency (ORCAA) 
4. Thurston Council for Children & Youth 

 
D. Councilmember Andy Ryder: 

1. Business Resource Center 
2. Economic Development Council (EDC) 
3. Transportation Policy Board (TPB) 
4. Visitor & Convention Bureau (VCB) 
 

E. Councilmember Ron Lawson: 
1. Community Action Council (CAC) 
2. Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) 

 
F. Councilmember Jeff Gadman 

1. Health & Human Services Council (HHSC) 
2. HOME Consortium 
3. Regional Sustainability Task Force 
4. Thurston County Law & Justice Council 

  
G. Councilmember Lenny Greenstein 

1. Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
2. TCOMM911 
3. Water Resource Inventory Area 11 (WRIA) 

 
16.  ADJOURN   



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
LACEY CITY COUNCIL HELD THURSDAY,  
JULY 25, 2013, IN LACEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
  

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Clarkson called the meeting to order at 
 7:00 p.m.  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Ryder led the pledge of allegiance.   
 
 
COUNCIL PRESENT: V. Clarkson, J. Hearn, C. Pratt, J. Gadman,  
 R. Lawson, A. Ryder, L. Greenstein 
 
 
STAFF PRESENT: S. Spence, T. Woo, D. Schneider, R. Walk, S. Egger, 

L. Gotelli, D. Pierpoint, C. Litten, D. Burns, R. 
Schoessel, M. Hoppe, R. Andrews, D. Christenson 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
AND CONSENT AGENDA:  Consent Agenda Items: 

(a) Council Minutes of July 11, 2013 
(b) Final Plat of Campus Ridge Project #11-195 
 
Mayor Clarkson requested an agenda amendment to 
remove 2-B Final Plat of Campus Ridge Project #11-
195. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER RYDER MOVED TO APPROVE 
THE CONSENT AGENDA AND AMENDED 
AGENDA. COUNCILMEMBER GREENSTEIN 
SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED. 

  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Clarkson recognized Historical Commission 

members, Don Melnick, Ruth Shearer.  
 
 Anne Capella, announced that she is the Director of 

the Brighton Banquet and Event Center that will open 
in 2015 adjacent to Cabela’s. Reservations have 
already been accepted for 2015.    

 
  
 



PROCLAMATION: Mayor Clarkson declared August 1-7, 2013, as Clown 
Week. Gail Lindeblom accepted the proclamation on 
behalf of the Red Nose Brigade, and read the Clown 
Code of Ethics.  

 
 
RESOLUTION: Resolution No. 996 approves the Six-Year 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and the 
revised Transportation Improvement Mitigation List.  

 
The City is required to prepare an annual TIP and 
submit it to the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) and Thurston Regional 
Planning Council (TRPC) by July 31 each year. 
 
The primary purpose of the TIP is to track the Federal 
Transportation and State Transportation Improvement 
Board funds.  In addition, several sources have given 
projects additional points on grant funding if they are 
listed in the TIP.  The funds shown do not obligate the 
City to any specific amount of matching dollars.  All 
projects on the TIP are consistent with the 
Transportation Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Transportation Mitigation List is also updated with 
the TIP.  The Construction Cost Index this year is 
2.5%. 
 
The Planning Commission and Transportation 
Committee recommend approval of the Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Plan. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER RYDER MOVED TO APPROVE 
RESOLUTION NO. 996 TO APPROVE THE 2014-
2019 SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND THE REVISED 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT MITIGATION 
LIST. COUNCILMEMBER PRATT                 
SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED.  

 
 
ORDINANCE: Ordinance No. 1417 adopts the 2013 Comprehensive 

Land Use amendments, relating to planning, zoning, 
and land use regulations, adopting a Woodland 
District Strategic Plan, Stormwater Comprehensive 
Plan, a revised Urban Forest Management Plan, 



granting zoning changes, amending LMC 14.32.030, 
14.32.035, 14.32.045, 14.32.050, 14.32.064, 
16.03.015, repealing Table 14T-18, adding Tables 
14T-18, Table 14T-66. 

 
  Pursuant to the Growth Management Act (GMA), the 

City may only amend the Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan once per year. The intent is to provide a 
coordinated review as the various elements of the 
Comprehensive Plan are amended or updated to 
ensure the plan elements are consistent with each 
other.   

 
The 2013 Comprehensive Plan amendments include 
the adoption and/or amendment of the following 
documents:  
 
 The Woodland District Strategic Plan. Ryan 

Andrews, Associate Planner, recognized TRPC 
staff, Veena Cabot and Thera Black, for securing 
federal project funding and providing leadership 
throughout the process. He also recognized Julia 
Walton, NOVA Project Consultant, for guidance in 
developing the plan.  
 

 Comprehensive Storm Water Plan (Doug 
Christenson, Utilities Civil Engineer). Deputy 
Mayor Hearn noted for the record that the City has 
taken the initiative over the years to responsibly 
manage its stormwater.    
 

 Urban Forest Plan amendments (Ryan Andrews, 
Associate Planner). Mayor Clarkson thanked staff 
for their efforts over the years to move this plan 
forward to completion.  
 

 Applicant initiated Land Use Plan map 
amendments (Dave Burns, Principal Planner). 
 

 First Western Development Services (Dave 
Burns, Principal Planner). Designation to 
Mixed Use High Density Corridor on Martin 
Way.   

 Kauffman Brothers (Dave Burns, Principal 
Planner). Designation to Hawks Prairie 
Business District. 



 
Adoption of the Plan amendments is a step in the 
multi-year review of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to 
fully update the Comprehensive Plan by 2016 as 
required by the Growth Management Act.  
 
In addition, adoption of the Plan amendments 
finalizes the 2013 Planning Commission work 
program established by the Council, and address 
items Council determined were priority for review and 
action. The Planning Commission recommends 
approval of the amendments.   
 

  COUNCILMEMBER GADMAN MOVED TO 
APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 1417 TO ADOPT THE 
2013 COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE 
AMENDMENTS. COUNCILMEMBER GREENSTEIN 
SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED.  

 
 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT: Mayor Clarkson presented a request to Council for 

approval of the following appointments: 
 

 Reappointment of Paul Royer to a 3rd term on 
the Parks Board 

 Appointment of Ruth Weigelt to a 1st term on 
the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 

 Appointment of Fred Wright to an unexpired 
term on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 

 
 MAYOR CLARKSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE 

REAPPOINTMENT OF PAUL ROYER TO THE 
PARKS BOARD, AND THE APPOINTMENT OF 
RUTH WEIGELT AND FRED WRIGHT TO THE 
LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE.  
COUNCILMEMBER RYDER SECONDED. MOTION 
CARRIED.  

 
 
CITY MANAGER’S 
REPORT: Scott Spence, City Manager, announced the Lacey 

Museum Open House will be held on August 5, 
followed by the Lacey Historical Commission meeting.  
 



STANDING GENERAL 
COMMITTEES: Community Relations & Public Affairs 
 Councilmember Greenstein reported the Committee 

met on July 1, 2013, to receive an update on the 
July 3 Fireworks Spectacular and the Lacey 
Community Market.    

 
 Land Use Committee 
 Councilmember Pratt reported the Committee met on 

July 1, 2013, to discuss concerns related to coal 
exports transported by rail through Thurston County.  

 
 Transportation Committee: 

Councilmember Gadman reported the Committee met 
on July 9, 2013, to discuss citizen concerns about 
pedestrian safety when crossing Carpenter Road.  

  
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: Community Action Council 
  Councilmember Lawson reported the Board received 

an update on the insulation program, and discussed 
converting an old septic tank at Tolmie Cove into a 3 
acre garden. In addition, the Board received a 
demonstration of how court dogs work with 
traumatized children.  

 
  Emergency Medical Services 
  Councilmember Greenstein reported a new 24/7 

medic unit has been located at the fire station in 
Hawks Prairie by Jubilee.   

 
  TCOMM 911 
  Councilmember Greenstein reported preliminary 

discussion has begun regarding the budget and 
potential shortfalls.  

 
   HHSS 
  Councilmember Gadman announced that HHSS and 

Home Consortium will be consolidated into one 
organization to more efficiently manage funding 
allocations for social services agencies.  

  
   Human Trafficking 

Deputy Mayor Hearn reported the Human Trafficking 
Alliance will hold a summit of elected officials and 
community leaders representing multiple agencies, 



organizations and municipalities to focus on the issue 
of human trafficking.   
 
Intercity Transit 
Mayor Clarkson reported he represented Intercity 
Transit at a national conference attended by various 
transportation agencies. 
 
Law & Justice Council 
Councilmember Gadman reported a new UID law will 
go into effect without additional funding for law 
enforcement. The Council received an update on how 
to help the mentally ill before entering the court 
system. The Board also received an update on plans 
to staff and open the ARC.  
 
SWAC 
Councilmember Lawson reported the Board held a 
retreat and budget cuts that have impacted staffing. 
He announced the County Commissioners have 
approved a bag ban in the county and will enact the 
law in the fall. In other business, the Board discussed 
the amount of compostable quantities in the waste 
stream and solutions for addressing the issue.  
 
Sustainable Task Force 
Councilmember Gadman reported the Board  
Discussed how each jurisdiction will implement 
regional guidelines. A presentation will be to the 
Lacey City Council in the fall.   
 
    

ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Clarkson adjourned the meeting at 8:55 p.m.  
 
 
 
MAYOR: _________________________ 
 
 
ATTESTED BY CITY CLERK: ___________________ 
 
 
DATE APPROVED: _____________________  
 
 



Page 1 of 1 

Lacey City Council Meeting 
August 8, 2013 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Final Subdivision Approval for Campus Ridge.  Project no. 11-195.   
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: As a consent agenda item, authorize the Mayor to sign the final 

subdivision map for Campus Ridge, project number 11-195. 
 

 
STAFF CONTACT: Scott Spence, City Manager 

Rick Walk, Community Development Director  

Sarah Schelling, Associate Planner   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Final Subdivision Map 
  
PRIOR COUNCIL/ 
COMMISSION/ 
COMMITTEE REVIEW: —  Preliminary Subdivision Approval given by the City Council on  
     March 8, 2012 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On March 8, 2012, the City Council approved the preliminary subdivision of Campus Willows.  
The project was approved for 55 single-family residential lots generally located within the 
Meridian Campus Planned Community, on a parcel known as MF2, northwesterly of Campus 
Highlands Drive Northeast, northeasterly of Hole 17 of the Woodlands Golf Course. The 
subdivision has been developed in accordance with its approval.  All public works and 
planning improvements are in place or financial securities are in place for their installation. 
 
Appropriate agencies and departments have reviewed the request.  The appropriate 
signatures have been obtained and it is now ready for the Mayor’s signature.  The applicant 
requests that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the final subdivision map for 
Campus Ridge.  This will allow the applicant to proceed with the development of the 
subdivision. 

 
 
ADVANTAGES:  
1. Signing the final subdivision map would allow the applicant to proceed with the 

development of the subdivision and the sale of lots. The final subdivision application 
meets the requirements of preliminary approval, is consistent with the City 
Comprehensive Plan, the City Zoning Code, and all applicable City regulations. 

 
DISADVANTAGES: 
1. Staff has not identified any disadvantages of approving this subdivision.   

  

































































































































































































































































































































Staff Report  
8/8/2013 

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

August 8, 2013 
 
 

SUBJECT:  20th Ave Waterline Replacement Project 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Award Lacey Contract Number PW 2013-16 to low bidder Black Hills 

Excavating, Inc. from Rochester, Washington, in the amount of 
$308,838.44. 

 

 
TO: Lacey City Council 
 
 
FROM: Scott Spence, City Manager 

Scott Egger, P.E., Public Works Director  
Roger Schoessel, P.E., City Engineer  
Dale Mix, P.E., Design/Construction Manager 
Justin Knox, P.E., Design Engineer 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Bid Summary Sheet 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT/   
SOURCE OF FUNDS: 20th Ave Waterline Replacement was anticipated and included in Lacey’s 

2013 Budget.  Funding for the project is provided through fund source 
WA1220 and the project is within budget. 

  
 
PRIOR COUNCIL/ 
COMMISSION/ 
COMMITTEE REVIEW: Not applicable    
 

 
BACKGROUND:   
 
This contract provides for the installation of approximately 2,800 LF of 6” and 8” diameter water 
main in 20th Ave SE to include service lines, meters, fire hydrants, valves, transfer of water 
services, connections to existing water system, water main abandonments, pavement and lawn 
restoration, and other work. 
 
The project was advertised for two weeks and bids were opened July 29, 2013.  Thirteen (13) 
bids were received.  The 13 bids ranged from a low of $308,838.44 to a high of $512,318.32.  
Black Hills Excavating from Rochester, Washington, is low bidder at $308,838.44.  The Engineer’s 
Estimate is $360,188.32.  A Bid Summary Sheet is attached. 
 
Black Hills Excavating is qualified and capable of performing the work.  Start date is anticipated 
to be around the beginning of September and there are 35-working days allotted. 



Staff Report  
8/8/2013 

Page 2 of 2 

  

 
ADVANTAGES:  

  

1.  Eliminate the leaks present along the existing watermain and service lines. 

 

2.  Replacement will eliminate the numerous repairs to both existing watermain and service lines that 
 this neighborhood has experienced over the past several years. 
 
DISADVANTAGES: 
 
1.  Traffic delays can be expected during construction. 
 



CITY OF LACEY
20th Avenue Waterline Replacement

PW 2013-16

8/2/2013 Apparent Lows

CONTRACTOR LOCATION BID AMOUNT POS.
Black Hills Excavating Rochester, WA $308,838.44 1
Iversen & Sons, Inc Tumwater, WA $342,600.66 2
BPCI General Contractors Puyallup, WA $347,592.00 3
Baker Underground Olympia, WA $390,173.22 4
MVG, LLC Maple Valley, WA $395,189.72 5
Henderson Partners, LLc Gig Harbor, WA $399,685.55 6
NOVA Contracting Olympia, WA $423,375.63 7
Sterling Breen Crushing, Inc Chehalis, WA $431,649.87 8
Northwest Cascade, Inc Tacoma, WA $434,498.90 9
Ronglin's, Inc Aberdeen, WA $461,975.00 10
Harlow Construction Company Lakewood, WA $488,899.99 11
GEC NW, Inc Tacoma, WA $511,013.82 12

WHH Nisqually Tacoma, WA $512,318.32 13

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE  $ 360,188.32





General Government & Public Safety Committee 
July 19, 2013 
Page 1 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT & PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
JULY 19, 2013 

8:00 – 8:55 A.M. 
 

COUNCIL PRESENT: Chair, Ron Lawson, Jeff Gadman, Lenny Greenstein 

STAFF PRESENT:       Scott Spence, Carol Litten, Dusty Pierpoint, Chris Ward, Troy Woo, 
Joe Upton, Liz Gotelli, Jim Mack, Dave Schneider 

Scott Spence, City Manager, requested an amendment to the agenda to discuss wire 
theft  

COUNCILMEMBER GADMAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE AMENDED AGENDA.  COUNCILMEMBER 
GREENSTEIN SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED.  

GRAFFITI / PUBLIC NUISANCE 

Chief Pierpoint reported the City is experiencing incidents of graffiti as a public 
nuisance, which sends a negative message to the community.  Although the City 
encourages residents and businesses to clean up their properties as quickly as 
possible, some property owners have not cooperated in a timely manner.  

Staff recommends amending the City’s nuisance ordinance to levy a fine if property 
owners are not responsive to cleaning up graffiti on their property.    

Committee members concurred that the ordinance should be amended to provide 
leverage for compliance with graffiti cleanup.  

Staff will move forward with preparing a draft ordinance for committee review.  

FIREWORKS UPDATE  

1. Public Safety 

Chief Dusty Pierpoint briefed the Committee on calls received about fireworks 
during the July 4th week. Two formal complaints were received, 4 citations were 
issued, and 114 calls were received. Most of the calls were in residential areas in 
the south part of the City.    

Historically, police have approached offenders with warnings. If not heeded, then 
tickets are issued. The challenge, however, is that the officers have to witness 
the offense.  

Committee members suggested increasing public outreach and education to 
raise awareness on the fireworks ban in Lacey and Olympia. Liz Gotelli, Human 



General Government & Public Safety Committee 
July 19, 2013 
Page 2 

Resources and Public Affairs Director, reported the two cities partnered with law 
enforcement to get the message out. It may also be effective to involve the fire 
department in the public education campaign to promote public safety.   

2. Event Report  

Liz Gotelli, Human Resources and Public Affairs Director, provided a recap of the 
July 3 Fireworks Spectacular held at the William A. Bush Park. Attendance was 
estimated at 8,000 to 10,000 with very positive feedback from the public, retailers 
and residents. There were some calls expressing concern about the impact of 
noise on pets and the elderly.  

The retailers were supportive of the event, contributed donations towards 
firework costs, provided pre-show activities for the public, and assisted with 
cleanup.  

Traffic flow improved from last year’s event, with assistance from police and 
public works staff. One recommendation is to close the intersection at Yelm 
Highway and College Street for 90 minutes instead of one hour in order to move 
traffic out of the parking lot more quickly.  

Liz reported staff met with the Lacey Chamber of Commerce, who co-sponsored 
the event with the City this year. The contract for fireworks amounted to $16,000. 
The Chamber raised $14,600, and the City will cover the remaining amount. The 
Chamber has indicated that they may not participate as co-sponsors in 2014, 
because the event conflicts with their annual Barbecue fundraiser, and they don’t 
have enough resources to fundraise for two events at the same time. 

The Committee agreed the fireworks display should continue in 2014 with 
support from the City.  

COPPER WIRE THEFT 
 
Scott Egger, Public Works Director, reported that copper wire theft is on the rise and 
has recently occurred in Stonegate, Avonlea, Rosemont, Schilter Farm, and Jaylee. It 
was recommended that there needs to be greater public awareness and education to 
report thefts to the police.   

 

   

 


	08.08.13_council_agenda_packet.pdf
	Agenda.pdf
	2-A CCMIN_07-25-13 (3)
	2-B Campus Ridge Final Plat
	CD - Staff Report - Campus Ridge Final Plat - City Council - August 8 2013 (Final)
	2-B Campus Ridge Final Plat.pdf
	Campus-1
	Campus-2
	Campus-3
	Campus-4


	6-A Proclamation Senior Services South Sound Day
	8-A Verizon Wireless Monopole CUP13-03
	1_1303_HE SUMM_REC.pdf
	2_13-03_ex_1-10
	3_13-03_ex_11-22


	12-A Award Bid 20th Avenue Waterline Replacement
	12-A Award Bid 20th Avenue Waterline Replacement
	PW - Staff Report - 20th Avenue Waterline Replacement Project - City Council - August 8 2013 (Final).pdf
	20th Avenue Waterline Replacement Project ATTACHMENT 1 08.08.13
	Sheet1

	area map

	20th Avenue Waterline Replacement Project
	20th Avenue Waterline Replacement Project ATTACHMENT 1 08.08.13
	area map

	13-A GOVT_07-19-13
	13-A GOVT_07-19-13




